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,DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

This yellow clapboard frame house is two stories high with an attic 
It is three bays wide, and two deep. There a~e two brick interior 
chimneys, one on the main ridge of the roof and slightly to the West side, 
and the other is located on the East side of the large North gable. The 
foundation is uncoursed stone. 

The West facade esterior is two bays wide. The Northwest portion ~f 
the West facade is the side of the front'porch. The porch roof is similaJ 
to a shed roof. It faces West and North. The porch gable end which , 
faces the West side is decorated with staggered shingles. There is a 2/2 
sash window on the Northwest facade, first story, which faces West. On 
the Southwest portion of the West facade there are three windows. The 
wihndows on the first and second stories are of regular fenestration and 
are 2/2 sash windows. The attic window, which is located in the West 
gable is smaller in size, but is also a 2/2 sash window. Around the gab­
le there is staggered shingle work, which like the porch rood end 
shingling, creates a contrast to the regularity of the clapboards. There 
are two basement window openings, one of which has a two-paned window, 
and the other, the Northwest window, which has been boarded up with 
plywood. The South projection, which is two stories high has two sm.;- '-tr 
sized 2/2 sash windows facing West, and can be seen from the West faca.J'S. 

The South facade is approximately three bays wide. On the Southwest 
portion of the South facade there are two windows, the one on the first 
and second floors are of regular fenestration, that is, 2/2 sash windows. 
the pro~ection is centrally located, and is two stories high. On the 
other side, the Southeast side, there is a smaller one story projection 
which has a large single-paned window, with small 4/4 windows, one on the 
left, and the other on the right. Bothcof the projections are supported 
by brick piers. Above the smaller projection, there is a regular 2/2 sas: 
window. Located above the central projection, there-is a flat, shed 
dormer which has a smaller 2/2 attic window contained in it. On the 
sides of the dormer, there is regular shingle siding. The foundation, 
which is of considerable height on the South facade, has a door to the -
Southwest side, which is probably a basement opening. 

The East facade is two bays wide. There are five windows, four of 
which are regular 2/2 sash windows, tMo on the first floor, and two on 
the second floor. The attic window, is also 2/2 sash, but is smaller in 
size. It is located dm the Southeast gable. There are two basement 
windows which are built into the foundation as on the West facade. The 
No~theastern basement window has been boarded with plywood, and the 
Southeastern window is a single-paned window. A portion of the polygonal 
wing(swell front) is seen as part of the East facade. 

The North facade is three bays wide. To the Northeast side is the 
polygonal wing, or swell front which is two stories high. There are 
three 2/2 sash windows on the first floor of the swell :front, and th~ : 
on the second floor, all of which have louvered shutters. Above thisy 
in the gable is the attic window which is the smaller 2/2 sash window. 
The gable has deep cornices and staggered shingles. On the Northwest 
portion, on the first floor, a two bay wide porch which is supported 
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by three rounded columns. There is a regular 2/2 sash window 
between the polygonal wing and the front door, facing West. There 
is another on the first floor facing North on the West side of the 
front door. The front door is located between these two windows 
and is on a diagonal facing Northwest. Above the single door is 
a rectangular four-paned transom, and on both sides 6£ the door 
there are three-paned sidelights. Above the porch is a salt-box 
(cat slide) roof. On the roof there is a gabled dormer that has 
shingled siding. Around the smaller sized 2/2 sash window and 
within the pediment, there is staggered shingle work. 



Interior-

The kitty-corner entranceway opens into a center hall which determines 
the plan of the interior space. The hallway contains a ~losed string 
switch back stair on the west wall. The paneling is reeded, there are 
turned balusters, and a turned newel post with a ball top. 

To the west of the hall is a single parlor containing a Latrobe 
fireplace, which appears to have a slate surround. A curved arch suggests 
its use for coal, and it is served by a chimney projecting 15 11 , 51 11 wide. 

A polygonal parlor occupies the area East of the hall. This room 
contains a brick, wood burning fireplace with a marble hearth. The opening 
is 19n deep, JL" wide and 28tt high. The brick mantle rises 50" off the 
floor and projects 81t. 

It is interesting to note the extremely plain moldings and four-panel 
doors accentuated by hinges and plates of a floral design. 

The second story has a multi-landing. The first landing breaks to 
the bathroom on the south end of the hallway. Contained within is a 
early sink and tub with porcelain fuxtures and an ovolo chair rail. 

The second landing leads to an area consisting of three full bedrooms 
and one small room used for stora~e in the southwest corner. 

Interesting features include animal-hair plaster walls, early 
electrical fixtures, circular switches, push button switches, wooden 
conduits, metal box locks, and metal and glass knobs. 

The stair to the third level is enclosed by vertical tongue-and-groove 
3" wide. This level constitutes nearly a full story. It has been par­
titioned into a central hall with two end rooms; a larger room to the East 
and a small room to the West. These rooms are charaterized by the odd 
shaped roof yielding a 52 1• knee-wall and trapezoidal ceiling. This area 
is lit by 2/2 sash windows with openings measuring 28·1:a0 wide and 53~' high. 
The plain moldings are 4 3/4" wide and.project J/4tt. 

There are batten do~rs made with vertical tongue-and-grJove. 
The full basement, having uncoursed stone walls, reflects the shape 

of the house. There are brick piers and transverse circular sawn joists. 
Two windows light the basement from the wast and west walls, with an 
entrance in the westernmost bay of the south wall. 
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This late nineteenth century house is signifigant for two reasons. 
It is signifigant not only for its individual architectural design, 
but also for its relationship with the four other late nineteenth century 
houses in the block, which demonstrate the variety of design during this 
period. 

Although it may have had minor alterations on its South side, 209 
Chesapeake Avenue remains intact and may be seen as representative of the 
Picturesque style. This is to say that the house is osmewhat asymetrical, 

-:;a.nd it incorporates a variety of contrasting textures, which are created, 
or example, by the evenness of the clapboards, and the sudden irregular­

ity and staggering of shingles. The concavity of the front porch establis 
hes a contrast to the convexity of the polygonal wing, or swell front. 
The front door layout is irregular in that it is on a diagonal both with 
the front and the sides of the house. These are examples of the organic 
approach to design prevalent in the late nineteenth century. 

209 Chesapeake Avenue is one of the few remaining houses on a street 
that had been planned in the late nineteenth century. At present this 
block is the only row of residences between York and ~osley Avenues that 
is original and shows the original skyline. The five houses in the block 

_ make visible the lifestyles of the late nineteenth century through the 
various architectural styles. The two houses on the ends of the block 
show the Queen Anrie'style and the Picturesque style. The three central 
buildings in the row are representative of the colonial revival in 
architecture. 

It is for these reasons, that it is important to preserve.the 
existing building, and use it for practical purposes, suitable to the 
expanding area of Towson. It woulduthen not only have a use to the 
community, but would also serve as an example of Victorian architeacture 
and show what a fashionable block of houses and neighborhood it once was. 
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IIiJGEOGRAPHICALDATA 
ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY 80' x165' irreg. 

Across from the new courthouse, Towson. On the Southwest corner of 
Chesapeake Avenue, and Bosley Avenue, bounded by two alleys. 
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200 BLOCK V1EST CHESAPRb..:KE A VENUE 

It has been documented that Towson owes much of its character 
to the fact th~t it grew as a"l9th century court house toVtn. 11 It 
was complete.with a ~01:1rthouse on a large green surrounded by banks, 
lawyers' offices, a Jail and some rather fine and fashionable resi­
dences. There are some visual documents of this fact remaining,. but 
modern development has fragmented the blocks around the square, 
leaving these links with the past often isolated from one another 
and dwarfed in scale. 

The single row, of houses on the south side of the 200 block of 
Chesapeake Avenue, however, do provide a continuous streetscape 
that is the last row of 19th century residences on that street in­
side of the loop road. Dramatically juxtaposed to the New Courts-. 
:Building, they provide an opportunity to realize the more human 
scale that this rural town possessed until only recently. The same 
row of buildings also prqvides exarr.ples::.::of various late 19th cen­
tury architectural styles and although they are now used for offices, 
they demonstrate a good deal about residential activity in Towson. 

No. 203 w. Chesapeake Avenue is a rambling multi-directional -
building that shows the influence of the Queen Anne ~tyle. Modern 
siding does not off.er the various textures one might expect but· the 
tower, bay windmvs, polygonal projections and various shaped win-· 
dews do provide the variety of_ forms typical of that style. In Num­
bers 205, 207 and 209, however, we-see what was once three nearly 
identical houses that are not as organic in appearance. ·on the con­
trary they are much more regular in form and expressive of the· clas­
sical attitude suggested by the Colonial Hevival. In these build­
ings one sees regular fenestration, pedimented porches with slender 
Doric columns and each is centralized by a prominent central pedi-

/"""· ment. A curious feature found in all three is the very nice sun­
burst or fan-shaped design that decorates the bottom corners of the 
central pediment. Nicely balancing this row of buildings is No.211 
which, like its neighbor at the opposite end of the block, is mor~ 
Victorian in nature. Its use of shingled gables and clapboards, 
the "swell front" and high fieldstone foundation are suggestive of' 
the picture$que. 



Title/Deed 

Liber/Folio 

5193/706 

2439/246 

301/304 
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for 209 Chesapeake Avenue 

Date 

May 26, 1971 

February 27, 1954 

September 1, 1906 
November 18, 1901 

February 23, 1900 

June 1888 

October 12, 1886 

Conveyor to Conveyee 

Frank Procter to Baltimore County 

Gager and Rigdon to Frank Procter 

William Cole to H. Chapman 
Bosley et al., to William Cole 
Milton Offutt to Grafton Bosley 

Eben Hunting to Milton Offutt 

Granville Wilson to Eben Hunting 
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